WHITE’S HISTORY, GAZETTEER AND DIRECTORY OF STAFFORDSHIRE, 1851

ALREWAS is an extensive village, pleasantly situated on the south bank of the Trent, opposite to Wichnor, one mile W. of the mouth of the river

Tame, and 5 ½  miles N.E. of Lichfield.  It is crossed by the Trent and

Mersey Canal, and on its eastern side is a commodious Station on the

South Staffordshire Railway, where there is much traffic in lime, coal, &c.,

as well as at the wharfs.  The parish is a fine champaign district, comprising 
the three townships of Alrewas, Fradley and Orgreave, which had 1658

inhabitants in 1841, of whom 1173 were in Alrewas township ( See p. 528.)

The whole parish comprises about 4500 acres of rich land, mostly in pasturage and meadows, and of which 2249 acres were not enclosed till after the

year 1794.   This is exclusive of Alrewas Hay, which is extra parochial,

and was not wholly enclosed till after the year 1826.   The Earl of Lichfield is lord of the manor, and owner of nearly all the land.  He is also lessee of the rectorial tithes, under the Chancellor of Lichfield Cathedral, who enjoys the Prebend of Alrewas, instituted by the bishop in 822.  In the time of the Saxons this extensive manor belonged to Algar, Earl of

Mercia. It was afterwards held by the Conqueror, and is described in

Domesday book as containing eight carucates of arable land; two in demesne, and six held by a bondman, 20 villeins, 6 bordars, and a priest, together with 24 acres of meadow, a fishery that yielded 1500 eels, and a wood, one mile in length and half a mile in breadth.  King John granted the manor in fee-farm to Roger de Somerville, and in 1660 it was sold by

Sir Francis Boynton, for £3130, to John and Philip Turton, Esqrs., whose

descendant, John Turton, Esq., sold it in 1752 to that distinguished naval

commander, the first Lord Anson, from whom it has descended to the Earl

of Lichfield. The parish Church, dedicated to All Saints, is a fine specimen of Saxon architecture, but it has, at various periods, undergone many repairs, and over the western door is the date 1627.  It has five bells and a clock.  The vicarage, valued in K.B. at £5. 6s. 8d and now at £328, is in the patronage of the Prebendary of Alrewas, and incumbency of the Rev. John Moore, M.A.   Here is a Wesleyan Chapel, built in 1805 and enlarged

in 1846 ; and a Primitive Methodist Chapel, built in 1828.   The former

has a Sunday School and Library ; and here is a National School, built in

1815. Among the remarkable events recorded in the Register Book, are the

following:-On Nov. 11th 1585, “a blazing starre” (comet) appeared,

and was seen for forty days after ; in 1593, the Plague carried off 200 at

Alrewas, and more than 1100 at Lichfield ; 1601, Salter’s Bridge, which

crosses the Tame, was rebuilt two feet broader than the old structure ; 

1613, Robert Nevill and his son were killed by lightning under an oak in

Salterholme field ; 1614, the mill at Alrewas Hay was rebuilt; 1621, King

James was at Wichnor Hall ; 1643, an alehouse near the church was burnt

down, together with an adjoining house and barn ; 1675, on January 4th, a 

terrible earthquake was felt ; 1711, all the church bells were re-cast ; in

1794, six troops of yeomanry cavalry were raised in Staffordshire, and

trained on Fradley Heath.  In the same parochial register it is recorded,

that an extensive cotton mill was erected at Alrewas a few years prior to

1793, by Messrs. Dickins and Finloe, of Burton-upon-Trent.   About 35

years ago, part of this mill was wilfully destroyed by fire, and the incendiary was

condemned to die, but his sentence was commuted for imprisonment, on the ground 

of insanity.   The mill is now occupied by M. and W. Bond and Co., tape and smallware manufacturers, and Mr. John Wilson, corn miller.   The parish feast is on Sunday after 

All Saints’ day.  In 1832, the parishioners erected May poles in the three townships of the

parish, with suitable inscriptions, to commemorate the passing of the Reform Bill, and

as a testimony of their gratitude to the Earl Lichfield for the firm and unremitting zeal which he displayed in supporting that great national measure.  The pole at Alrewas cost about £30.  The comparative extent of each township is shewn by the quotas paid to the Church and

County rates, Alrewas paying five-eighths, Fradley two-eighths, and Orgreave one-eighth.

The poor of Alrewas parish have, by some ancient grant, a yearly 

distribution of sixteen bushels of rye, out of the Great Tithes of the parish.

They have also the rent of six acres of land called Great Busall, left by an 

unknown donor, and are further relieved by the following yearly sums,

viz.:- 10s. left by William Bradbury, in 1641, out of land called Greaven,

lying in Banbutts ; 10s. out of Furlong close, left by John Kirkland, in 

1737 ; 6s. out of land in Mickleholme, left by William Wright ; 5s. left by

John Yield, out of Burway meadow ; 5s. left by Thomas Shemmonds, out of

the Leens close ; and £4. 10s. as the interest of £90, left by Francis Cobb,

in 1804.  Amongst the LOST CHARITIES of this parish is the interest of

£55, left in 1692, by William Turton, Esq., and from the year 1777 to 1814,

paid out of Highlins Park, a part of the demesne of the Duchy of Lancaster,

lately held by Lady Evelyn, a descendant of the testator.


FRADLEY, 1 mile S. of Alrewas, is a small village, comprising within its

township about 1300 acres of land, and 362 inhabitants.   Fradley Heath

formed part of the extensive waste of Alrewas Hay, but was enclosed about

the year 1805.   Plot says, in one part of this common is a remarkable

spring, vulgarly said to be bottomless, which always overflows, and though

in a low situation, actually permits the plummet to descend forty-two

feet.  On the canal, half a mile S. of Fradley, is Dunstall wharf and 

hamlet.


ORGREAVE is a small village and township, on the south bank of the

Trent, half a mile W. of Alrewas.  It has about 700 acres of land and 123

inhabitants, viz., 96 in Orgreave, and 27 in Overley hamlet.  The Hall,

now a farm house with a fine avenue of lime trees, was formerly the seat of

the Adams family, the paternal ancestors of the Earl of Lichfield.


ALREWAS HAY, 4 miles N. by E. of Lichfield, is an extra parochial
liberty of 132 souls and 1680 acres, belonging to the Earl of Lichfield, and

containing the small village of FRADLEY JUNCTION, so called from the 

Fazeley and Trent and Mersey Canals, which here unite.  This district was

formerly an open forest or chase, and at the time of the conquest, perhaps

formed the extensive wood noticed in Domesday-book.   It was not wholly

enclosed till 1826.


ALREWAS.

Baggaley John, gentleman, Cottage

Bagnall Thomas, millwright

Battelle Thomas Esq. // Bakewell Mrs

Beech Samuel, gardener, Moor

Bond Morton & William, tape & small-

ware manufacturers

Buckley Ann, dressmaker

Cook George, plumber & painter

Daniffy William, hay & corn dealer

Day, John station master

Gillott Mrs. Sarah // Knight Mrs. A

Graham James, cooper

Green Edith, saddler &c.

Green William, nail maker

Harrison Richard, carrier

Kent Joseph, ironmonger, timber & coal


merchant, wheelwright, &c.

Lakin Sarah, draper

Langley Edward, lock & whitesmith

Leggett Robert, gardener

Moore Rev. John, M.A., vicar

Oates Parkinson, surgeon

Pycroft, John Winter, gent

Sanders Joseph, hair dresser &c.

Shemmonds, Joseph, farrier

Shemmonds Thomas, nurseryman, &c.

Sketchley, Simon, horse breaker

Smith John & Symnett W. keepers

Sumner Mr. John

Thomas William, clogger & parish clerk

Turner William & Waite Edward sawyers

Welden John, gamekeeper

Whitehouse Samuel gentleman

Whiting George drill & machine owner

Wilson John corn miller


INNS AND TAVERNS.

Crown, Jane Lakin, Post –office

George & Dragon, Thomas Shakeshaft

Paul Pry, Emma Edden

White Hart, Ann Bladen


ACADEMIES.

Green Ann

Longhurst Thomas

Shemmonds William

Nettleton Robert &

Mrs. National School

BAKERS.

Edgley Joseph

Liversuch Joseph

Moorley William

Thomas George


BASKET MAKERS.

Carthy John

Dolman William

Dolman William junior

Dolman, John


Thomas, Moses, 

and Phineas

Fletcher William

Gray Isaac


BEERHOUSES.

Edgley William

Genders William

Roberts William

Thomas John


BLACKSMITHS.

Bean James

Bean William


BOOT & SHOEMAKERS.
Dagley Daniel

Gaskell William

Genders Thomas

Green Thomas

Lakin John

Langley Thomas

Roberts George

Turner Thomas


BRICKLAYERS.

Lacey John

May James

May Thomas

Taylor Thomas

Wood Philip


BUTCHERS.

Ganes William

Green Joseph

Green James

Skakeshaft Thomas


FARMERS.

(*are owners)

Bailey John

Bailye Henry

Beech James Hill


Cross

Bentley Charles baililff

Bladen Henry

Dolman Thomas

Dutton James

*Gray Thomas

Hastilow Edward

Lakin Mary

Lees Ann, Sittels

Lucas, William

Merry George bailiff

Parr Thomas

Shakeshaft Thomas

*Shemmonds J.

*Thorniwork James

 (and grazier)

Tomlinson James

Tunley William

Upton John


JOINERS & BUILDERS.

Harris William

Kent Isaac

Parker Joseph


MALSTERS.

Lakin Mary

Shakeshaft Thomas

Sylvester William


SHOPKEEPERS.

Betts William

Genders William

Gray Thomas

Johnson Elizabeth

Langley Thomas

Liversuch Joseph

Marshall Mary

Moorley William

Thomas G. grocer

Slater Elizabeth

Wilcock David

Woodward Thomas


TAILORS.

Hurdman Richard

Maddock John

Port Adam

Stokes Thomas

Wilkins James


WHARFINGERS, &C

coal,lime,&c.dealers

Cook, George

Kent Joseph

Railway Lessees


WHEELWRIGHTS.

Kent Joseph

Pallett Thomas

Shakeshaft John


(& coal dealer)


RAILWAY

Trains 4 times

a day, each way

POST OFFICE

at Crown Inn.

Letters despatched

7. 30 evening via

Lichfield.

CARRIER. – Richard

Harrison, to

Lichfield. Friday &

Burton Saturday 9 

morning.

ALREWAS HAY.

(*are at Fradley Junction)

*Bailey, Charles, shopkeeper

*Ball Thomas wharfinger & collector

*Bateman Thomas clerk

*Bean Thomas, blacksmith

*Giles Henry, canal surveyor

*Handsaker James, porter

*Lewis John, joiner, &c.

Shemmonds Mr. Thomas

Taylor William, farm bailiff

Virtue Joseph, farmer

Wake Jacob, gamekeeper

*Wright Mr. Thomas


FRADLEY.

Bannister William, wheelwright

Bevins Mr. James and Mr. William

Bentley Mr. George//Cosby Mr. John

Dolman Daniel, baker & shopkeeper

Dolman Thomas,basket maker

Edden Mr. John //Dilkes Mrs school

Fisher Mary, beerhouse, Bridge

Lester John, shoemaker & shopkeeper

Lester Thomas agent to Birmingham District


Fire Office, and victualler Crown

Nicholls James, gentleman Cottage

Paskin John victualler Bull’s Head

Rowe Thomas, tailor

Sherratt John & Upton William smiths

Watson James, gamekkeper

Yeomans Thomas, wheelwright


FARMERS.

Baxter James

Dakin John

Dolman Joseph

Edwards Nathaniel

Finney Moses

Heath Daniel

Lester Thomas

Paskin Samuel

Paskin Thomas

Paskin John

Riley James

Robinson William

Shaw Elizabeth Hall

Sherratt Thomas

Upton John

Winter Richard

ORGREAVE.

Cook John, shopkeeper

Eccleshall John, farm bailiff

Lancaster Mr. John


FARMERS. (*are Owners)

Collett Thomas, Knowle Bank

Gould Ralph, Lupin Bank

Kent Elizabeth//Green Charles Lupin Bank

Lakin William//Sylvester John

*Smith John//*Smith William

Shipton Thomas, Orgreave Hall

Sylvester John Cooper, Overley

Wright John

